





MINUTES OF MEETING SOUTH-DADE VENTURE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the South-Dade Venture Community Development District was held on Thursday,  April 28, 2022 at 4:00  p.m. at the Waterstone Bay Clubhouse, 1355 Waterstone Way, Homestead, Florida 33033.

Present and constituting a quorum were:

Miguel Aponte Jessica Cabrera Mike Cruz
Curtis Cooper Victor Valladares
 Chairman
Vice Chairman Assistant Secretary Assistant Secretary Assistant Secretary


Also present was:

Scott Cochran Paul Winkeljohn Ben Quesada Mayra Padilla Damian DelaVega
Vincent Fernandez Kevin Mcintyre Marcos Villanueva
Councilman Larry Roth Councilwomen  Erica Avila Logan Saucer
Several Residents
 District Attorney District Manager
Governmental Management Services Governmental Management Services BrightView
BrightView Maverick Security Maverick Security City of Homestead City of Homestead
Pebblebrook HOA Board member



FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS	Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance
Mr. Aponte called the meeting to order, and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all who attended the meeting.

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS	Approval  of  the  Minutes  of  the
March 31, 2022 Meeting
Mr. Aponte:	Moving on to item No. 2, approval of the minutes for the March 31, 2022 meeting. Do we have motion to approve?
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On MOTION by Ms. Cabrera seconded by Mr. Cruz with all in favor, the Minutes of the March 31, 2022 Meeting were approved.
file_0.bin



THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS	Consideration  of Resolution #2022-
02 Approving the Proposed Fiscal Year 2023 Budget and Setting the Public Hearing
Mr. Aponte: Item No. 3 is considerat ion of resolution #2022-02 approving the proposed fiscal year 2023 budget and setting the public hearing, Paul?
Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes, today is that famous start to your budget cycle. One of the things you always do in this is you pick a date when you're going to adopt your budget, that's often the hardest part, the other thing which is not so hard these days is to decide your assessment level. You basically lock yourself into the ceiling of your assessment level, staff's proposed budget, draft today does not include or recommend an increase. So, with those two elements in front of you, you're really choosing to keep  your assessment at the same level or a lower, you can choose that final decision at adoption, but the hard part of course is when do you want to adopt. So, April 28th is today's date, your next advertised meeting that would meet the 60-day minimum, is July 28th. Now you have the option of calling a special meeting, etc., but I really don't think there's anything particularly special about this year's budget, necessarily, the only thing you'd be doing is reducing the one debt line, which you can deal with at a later time upon adoption, you can do that then.
Mr. Aponte: So, July 28th, is everyone ok with that? Ms. Cabrera: Yes.
Mr. Cruz: Yes.
Mr. Winkeljohn : The budget includes all the contractual changes for the next year and normal projections.
Mr. Cooper: That's going to be a 4:00 o'clock meeting or it's going to be a later meeting?
Mr. Winkeljohn: To be honest with you, and obviously it's going to be the Board's decision, but historically we would table the meeting and have like a town hall meeting or
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something like that first. If you feel you want to do that at this time you can choice to do it any way you want. I don't think it's administratively necessary because there's nothing in this budget that the public hasn't heard or seen, it's nothing new, there's no policy shifts, there's no service level adjustments , so to me your public is not getting anything new that they don't already have with 15 years of knowledge, but that's your call.
Mr. Aponte:  It's up to you all.
Ms. Cabrera:  I mean I don't care for changing the time, I'm ok with 4:00 o'clock. Mr. Valladares: It's the same budget.
Ms. Cabrera: Yes, nothing has changed.
Mr. Aponte : Do you need a motion for that Paul?
Mr. Winkeljohn : That would be the end of the discussion , yes. Mr. Valladares:  I'll make that motion.
Mr. Aponte: So, the motion was made by Victor to keep the meeting for July 28th at 4:00 p.m., correct?
Mr. Valladares: Correct.
Mr. Winkeljohn: And resolution #2022-02 is to set the hearing on July 28th and to approve the proposed budget so that on July 28th you would have that time to review it and make any comments and that kind of thing . The only thing you can't do is increase it.


On MOTION by Mr. Valladares seconded by Ms. Cabrera with all in favor, Resolution #2022-02 Approving the Proposed Fiscal Year 2023 Budget and Setting the Public Hearing on July 28, 2022 at 4:00 p.m. at 1355 Waterstone Way, Homestead , FL was approved.
file_1.bin



FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Discussion  of  Procedures  for  the
General Election
Mr. Aponte:  Item No. 4, discussion of procedures for the general election, Paul?
Mr. Winkeljohn : Yes, so Ithink most of you are familiar with this process, but it is important to have it on an agenda for the public, but very important to understand that the magic dates of June 13th through June 17th are the qualification periods from 12:00 noon to 12:00 noon. Seats #2 and #3 are up for election, that's Miguel Aponte and Mike Cruz. Make sure that when you go to register, you know that number or just ask, what seat do
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you have me in, that's the seat I'm applying for, that's a good trick of the trade to make sure there isn't a Sonya mistake.
Ms. Cabrera:  So, who's #2 and who's #3? Mr. Cruz:  I'm #3.
Ms. Cabrera: And you're in seat #2? Mr. Aponte: Yes.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Correct.  They are taking them by mail, by email, I've seen lots of Board members in the last 2 election cycles say there is a lot more flexibility and I believe there's a new, or part of the last legislative session or the one before that, allows them to take it in advance, hold it, and then on the actual qualification date then it goes into the system. As long your comfortable, I would call them, the number is in here, and walk through what works for you and your schedule that week or before.
Mr. Aponte : Ok.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Just don't be late because they won't take it. That's all I have. Mr. Aponte: Alright, thank you Paul.

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Staff Reports
Mr. Aponte:  Moving on to item No. 5, staff reports, Mr. Attorney.


	Attorney

Mr. Cochran: Yes, so good news, we had the value adjustment board hearing on April 15th, and this is about the tax issue with the clubhouse . The Property Appraiser denied our exemption that we've enjoyed ever since the District had taken ownership of it. So, we had the hearing and Paul and Ben did an excellent job as witnesses, and the magistrate that appears there doesn't render a decision at the time of the hearing, but we just received the other day a recommendation that includes findings of facts and conclusions of law, and that the magistrate is recommending to the value adjustment board that they approve our petition and uphold the exemption, so rejects the Property Appraiser's denial. (Inaudible comment) So, that's done, so they assessed the property, and it's around $15,000 or $16,000. (Inaudible comment) So, that's the good news on that. Other than that, as far as the last meeting, I followed up again with the city on the resolution to approve the conveyance of the lift station tracts to the city, we're still waiting to hear back from them, I had sent them before the last meeting a form of resolution and
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some minor revisions to these. They had sent for those and I'm just waiting for their approval before we bring it to you all to approve that resolution. So, I'm still waiting to hear back from the city just to get their ok on that. Also, just to finish the reversal of the drainage easement with Floridian Isles Townhomes , we're still waiting on a couple of items and get with the engineer to make sure there were no issues with that, once we get that we can go ahead, and you've already approved it. So, we can sign those and have them recorded, and other than that, working on a couple of other pending items, but that's really all I have to report, unless anyone has any questions. I want to bring an item forward to discuss last meeting, we had talked about the possibility of going through a rulemaking process, so just a reminder if that's something that you all are interested in, typically the way we would do it is, you would review those, look for what changes you wanted to make, and bring them to a meeting and discuss what we want to do, and then management and my office can put them together, then we have to advertise them for a public hearing, and have the public hearing, and then adopt them. So, it is a lengthy process but, just a reminder for that in case that's something that you all want to do.
Mr. Aponte: Ok, thank you, and we definitely want to look at the rules, and I don't know if everyone's had a chance to look at them or should we bring them to the next meeting and kind of break it down and see what we want. Is that something you recommend Paul?
Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes.
Mr. Aponte: Ok, so next month we'll take a look at that, and maybe spend a little bit of time making the changes.
Mr. Quesada: I can provide copies of the clubhouse rules, and anything like that, and then the attorney might have any other rules that we need to change, or do we have any other rules in the field?
Mr. Cochran:  I'm not aware of any.
Mr. Quesada: Ok, so this would be adopting new rules if we go that route, correct?
Mr. Cochran: Yes, if there are other rules, like I know the idea of parking rules, or something like, that came up and again those would be just for District property, property that we own or maintain, we can't make rules on anybody else's property. Typically what we would do is enter into an agreement with the association to enforce those rules but,
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yes if we don't have the need, and my understanding is we don't have any stated parking rules so we would have to adopt them, and now we could all do that as part of the same time. You can revise or amend the clubhouse rules and create new parking rules but, it would be the same process as to having them both, so it just makes more sense to do them together so you're only paying for one round of advertising and that kind of thing.
Mr. Aponte: Ok.
Mr. Quesada: So, like I said, I'll circulate those rules to everybody , if there's anything you want to earmark or tab and run by me, we can kind of prepare him and he can do his research and bring it back to another meeting.
Mr. Aponte: Ok, sounds good.
Mr. Cooper: I don't know if you guys want to entertain, I know that it may be a lengthy process, and these meetings have been lasting pretty long with the business that we have. So, I don't know if there's a way we can maybe set up a like a special meeting just for these rules so that we're not exhausted and it's like we just say, go ahead and give part of the time to that.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Like a workshop.
Ms. Cooper: Yes, to have some type of a workshop .
Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, if you have a lot to debate and discuss and explore, that makes perfect sense, I don't know, do we have that much to chew on? I don't have a real sense on what kind of rule level you want to dig into.
Ms. Cabrera: I think we are, more than anything else, it's to establish some rules here in the clubhouse and some parking enforcement rules, from what I gather from what we've discussed .
Mr. Aponte:  Right, and then in the field as well too. Ms. Cabrera: Right, but not on District property.
Mr. Winkeljohn : Ok, so maybe our next meeting, just make that agenda just a rules discussion and sort of get a consensus on what we want in them and what they might look like, and then worry about the formal rule meetings later, does that sound good?
Ms. Cabrera: Yes.
Mr. Aponte: That's great.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  So, that would be in May.
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Mr. Cooper: That's fine. Mr. Winkeljohn: Ok.
Mr. Aponte: Anyone else?

·B. Engineer
	Discussion/Updates on Stormwater Management Needs Analysis
	Discussion of Proposals for Extra Work at Waterstone with BrightView Landscape Services

Mr. Aponte: So, item B, engineer, where are we at? Mr. Winkeljohn: Do we have anything from Juan?
Mr. Quesada: No, but they are still preparing your stormwater management needs analysis report and I think the deadline is June 3oth, correct?
Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes.
Mr. Quesada: So, we'll have something to you as soon as it's completed, but so far so good on that, and we're looking at somewhere in early May for storm drain cleaning to commence for the District here. He's finishing one other District, which he's wrapping up as we speak, and I think we're next on the list from what my understanding is. Real quick, I know we have few guests here, you have BrightView and you have Maverick here, as you guys recall at the last meeting we kind of got things a little last minute but we've been discussing some areas, some landscaping upgrades throughout the District. Damian and Vince came out here about a month or so ago to look at the pricing and look at that information, if the Board is ready to make any decision or if you have any questions for BrightView they're here to answer them, and we can tackle that real quick.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Do you want to do that?
Mr. Aponte: I mean, I've taken a look at it, I know that we've got a lot going on in the District but, there is an area of concern and I know I've talked to Ben about it which is, I guess we can call that the east side of the clubhouse where we have some drainage issues due to where the drain is collecting a lot of junk on it, so in my opinion that would be something that could be, it's not just aesthetically pleasing but also we're addressing a problem. So, I'm not sure if the Board is ok with entertaining that area, and maybe as the year goes by and it  makes a little bit more sense financially , then we can make modifications to other areas.
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Mr. Valladares: That makes sense. Ms. Cabrera: Where is it again?
Mr. Winkeljohn: Sort of the southwest side of the clubhouse .
Mr. Aponte : Right, remember we moved the hedge out of there, and we were either going to fence it in and make it private, or bring in some type of landscaping to bring privacy but, there are other concerns with that area right there that were brought to our attention. Especially all the mulch going into that drainage area, it's becoming an issue.
Ms. Cabrera:	I mean, I would put grass down in that one area, or pavers and forget the rest of it, those are my thoughts .
Mr. Winkeljohn: Well, that's what they're here to tell us their ideas. Do you want to hear their ideas?
Mr. Aponte: Yes. Ms. Cabrera: Ok.
Mr. Quesada:  And he has the bigger blown-up version, but I have the one on the screen which has the pricing and everything there.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  And it's in the agenda also.
Mr. Quesada: I have it as page 64 or 65 in the digital version . Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes, I've got it.
Mr. DelaVega: Now, this was just an idea we threw in there, trying to get your feedback on it, just something that we came up with, and yes, we did address that, if you see it in the center, we did address that drainage issue about the mulch going into it all the time. So, it's going to keep going in there, so what we want to do, is we had to come up with something that would go away from that, and put in a river rock in that area, not the small ones, this would be like medium size river rock and just put a barrier and eliminate putting mulch around it. We just did a small section again, and if you like that idea, we can do more of it and just eliminate the mulch, so you won't have that problem.
Ms. Cabrera:  I thought we were talking about the inside of the pool, I'm sorry . thought we were talking about near the pump on the inside where we have that type of grass, sorry.
Mr. DelaVega: So, no, on the inside I think we just took the tree out or whatever.
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Mr. Quesada: We're ready to go as far as pavers go, and I already had a contractor looking to find the exact match.
Mr. DelaVega: Now, the only thing is after we removed the oak tree was now, we had the privacy issue, you can see your neighbor, and she's got three windows there, and you have the door, I know Ben had asked me what we did to help out. We did some cutting on it to try to promote more growth, but it's still going to take some time. I did hit with extra fertilizer like I told you on Monday, so that's done, but it is open. One suggestion I have is like put a tarp, so you would get a tarp for that section, and just to help out.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Like a windscreen type. Mr. DelaVega:  Yes.
Mr. Quesada:  Just temporarily.
Mr. DelaVega: Right temporarily, even if you put plant material in there, it's going to take forever to grow into it, especially if you're not sure what you're going to do and so forth. Now, we did take the tree out, we cannot stump grind it. I wanted to mak sure you know that, because you do have pipes going through there and we believe if we get the machinery in there we're going to damage that but, we did cut it as low as we could and we do have a chemical, so it will not come back, it's going to rot out, you won't have to worry about it, so maybe by then you'll know and it will be gone. We did take the robellini out from the other side; I know you told me that, and we're concerned still because that's where the pumps are. You have pipes, so I'm afraid to put a piece of equipment in there, so on Monday I should have something, we have handle shovel that we should be able to shave it but, I'm going to be honest with you, I'm going to be afraid to go in because there's a good chance we're going to break some pipes.
Mr. Quesada: Ok.
Mr. DelaVega: So, I'm going to try to do my best with it and Monday or Tuesday, I'll send you pictures once we get that done.
Mr. Quesada: Ok, so that's all we're missing and they're looking for the pavers so we can cover that up.
Mr. DelaVega: Ok. So, this section is actually on the outside here, where you had the drainage, and you usually have another drainage for you're A/C, I believe, I'm just not
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sure which A/C it is, but I can see there's a pipe just hanging out, so maybe you should address that as well.
Mr. Quesada: Yes, it's the exhaust line, or whatever you want to call it, where it drips, right.
Mr. DelaVega: It's on the second page, if you're following, and I did have this one idea, I know from the last time we just briefly looked at it, and I thought for the most part, you kind of like that I guess, if not, that's why I'm here, if you like or we can change it or do something different. I know we also did one for the entrance here, and we had a proposal for one type of palm tree, and I guess we came back that maybe the date palm, and so we put it in there, and they look nice. Now, looking at it, we did the diamond cut on the medjool and it keeps growing, so that's one option, and again I'm here, tell me what you guys think , if you don't like it, you want something completely different or whatever , I don't know, give me your feedback .

(At this point several people were talking at one time, and no one conversation could be heard)

Mr. Aponte : Ok, go ahead Curtis, do you have any suggestions? Ms. Cabrera: What are your thoughts?
Mr. Cooper: For the pool fence option 2, I mean that's the only option we have here, correct?
Mr. DelaVega:  Ithink that's all we have left.
Mr. Cooper: I mean I would rather see the medjool palms there versus the ones we have at the guardhouse, but that's just me, because I think our clubhouse should stand out.
Mr. DelaVega: So, these palms that we put here, are the ones that we had up front, and again, those are your palm trees, you want to be able to see it. (Inaudible comment) This part doesn't show here, but you get a nice line here because you weren't sure what you wanted to go with. If you want the medjools we can definitely put them there.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Well, generically speaking, like a date palm of some kind because the medjools haven't worked here.
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Mr. DelaVega: Well, that's awesome, because you're going to be near the pool, and believe it or not, people are going to get in and out of the pool, they're going to be splashing the water, and if it's all concrete, then the palm tree is not going to be doing very well.
Mr. Fernandez: (inaudible comment) I know the medjools are good looking, but it's not good for the plant, if it stays too moist, too wet, and it gets fungus, which is a liability because you can't catch it before it falls, so I would advise against it. They are beautiful palms, but it would be too thick and massive in a small area like this, maybe for the entrance idea, we can visit that, but for that it would be just too much. I think the skinner palm would be better.
Mr. DelaVega: And again, it's where the drain is, you have all the moisture there.
Mr. Quesada: Just another point I want to make about that area for those type of palms, the date palms, is that the fruit is going to constantly fall on the deck and stuff like that, so I would rather have it somewhere where there's less foot traffic, so that we don't have the staining and all that.
Mr. DelaVega: Yes.
Mr. Cooper: Is there anything behind that red plant?
Mr. DelaVega: You see you have three tiers, you have a red one, and that's the one we had for the school, we can maintain it and keep it there, but when we opened this up and we saw the picture, especially after we removed the bougainvillea, it's nice, maybe work around it, so that's one of the options. (inaudible)
Mr. Fernandez: You're thinking about it from the other way, so if you're looking from the pool outward, you're just looking at the red plants, that's what you're getting at right?
Mr. Cooper: Well, no, more so for me. I'm looking at it like that's the clubhouse, privacy, what's going on behind there, people are enjoying themselves, so having something like that (inaudible comment)
Mr. Fernandez: (inaudible comment) And actually if you put the podocarpus, it will stand out, so that's why I said if you put the vinyl fence, it's going to stand out, you'll see the color contrast, it's going to stand out.
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Mr. Cooper: Then like as well, I mean the rocks are nice, it looks like a gray, so maybe either aesthetic in rocks so it goes around the out tier and then how that palm tree is to the left, to bring all of that together somehow, and then mulch area.
Mr. DelaVega: And that's kind of what we were going with to keep the mulch, you can get whole river rock, they have white river rock, brown river rock, and they have different sizes.
Mr. Fernandez: You can do the front, you can do the river rock, and then around the drain you can put some bigger pieces, so it catches everything that comes floating down into it, that's where it's easier to clean up around it.
Mr. DelaVega: Yes, you got do it, like you have the trim, with the river rock, not the whole thing, but at least to see where you can see, and then we bring a fence to get the rest, and that one palm in the left corner, Iwould think that would stay.
Mr. Fernandez: Right.
Mr. Quesada: So, how close are we as far as a look goes, do you guys want to approve a not to exceed and maybe have somebody from the Board put a bow on it with BrightView?
Mr. DelaVega: And we can always leave a space for having podocarpusm along the fence .
Mr. Quesada: We can table it, whatever you guys want to do. Mr. Aponte : How do you feel?
Ms. Cabrera: I mean I like it, I'm with Curtis, we need some kind of privacy so I don't know if we would rather do like a privacy fence, or we'd rather go with a hedge but, I like it just as it is.
Mr. Quesada: I can tell you if you guys rip out that aluminum fence it's very expensive to do that and replace it, and I do have some concerns too with some of the waste line that you have from the pool running down into that drain, so we have to be careful how we do that.
(At this point several peo ple were talking at one time, and no one conversation could be heard)

Mr. DelaVega: Depending on the quality, you can get some that almost look like ivy, so that could be a good backdrop, and the view from the pool how is that going to

12
South-Dade Venture COD
April 28, 2022

April 28, 2022
South-Dade Venture COD


look, so that's  something to  think  about,  but those  red type  plants can grow, and podocarpsm would be along the fence.
Mr. Quesada: My only question if you put that podocarpusm, if you guys trim and it's far enough away from the pool, we can keep all of that out of the pool?
Mr. Fernandez: Podocarpusm when you trim it's minimal, it grows slow, it's a slow grower so we just trimming a little.
Mr. Quesada:  Ijust wanted to make sure we're good on the maintenance side.
Mr. DelaVega: Me personally if you look at, it's open, but that's a gorgeous look. (Inaudible comment)
Mr. Aponte: And I don't have a problem, I actually like it the way it is, I'm not feeling the hedge behind it yet. I don't think that would look right when it's tall, because I know they get stringy, but if we get it maybe midway, and maybe you can try to see what we need there but, I don't have a problem with starting it the way it is and then eventually if we need to either go with a hedge or fencing or whatever the case may be that's something we can address later.
Mr. DelaVega: Right, and the height of it doesn't worry me because you have all those other plants here, it would be from the pool side, you would just see that, so maybe we would put another tier on that side to cover that.
Mr. Aponte: Oh, you're saying if they're on the inside because you know how they grow tall.
Mr. Delavega: And from a vehicle you don't see it, but from the inside you'll see it, so you can always just put a hedge in.
Mr. Fernandez: You know what we could do with that too, you're right, we can put two tiers of the red, have a lower one and have a taller one, and just keep it like that so it stays full.
Mr. DelaVega: Yes.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, and they can be trimmed, if they get too tall you just cut them and make them small.
Mr. Quesada: They've been doing that on the median over by Campbell and it looks great.
Mr. DelaVega: Yes, those things would be twice the size by now.
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Mr. Aponte: So, you guys want to make a motion not to exceed, and what's the total on it?
Mr. Cooper: What about something for privacy? (Inaudible comment) Mr. Aponte: They have to be the same.
Mr. Cooper:  We should actually focus on Waterstone Bay.
(At this point several people were talking at one time, and no one conversation could be heard)

Mr. Aponte : Ok, so if we're good to go and we want to start phase 1, we need a motion please.
Mr. Cooper: So, just confirming though, getting this to have river rock on the base, and then a potential for future moving this a little bit off the fence a little bit so, if we do decide to do whatever privacy later on, we can add that too, and take plants out and all of that.
Mr. Aponte:  Yes, that sounds good to me.


On MOTION by Mr. Cooper seconded by Mr. Cruz with all in favor, accepting the proposal from BrightView for Phase I landscaping project not to exceed was approved.
file_2.bin



Mr. Quesada: A couple of quick updates for you, on 41st Terrace with the trimming, how are we doing with the trimming?
Mr. DelaVega: So, we do have the crews coming tomorrow  and Saturday to hopefully finish that up. You see what we did with the trees.
Mr. Quesada: Yes, on 41st Terrace.
Mr. DelaVega: I personally think they went a little crazy there, but you're not going to hear any complaints for a while, that's my statement.
Mr. Quesada: So, basically, they finished, I would call it the northside of Waterstone Way, and they're going to be commencing again next year with the perimeter along Floridian Isles I, going all the way down to 137th Avenue at least towards the FPL easement, that would be the route next year.
Mr. DelaVega: Then the main line.
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Mr. Quesada: Yes, the main line you have a huge main line leak, the way it was, I guess the developer when they put in the main line, put it right up against the cement at the bridge, they just fixed it this morning.
Mr. Winkeljohn: And no soil cover, the concrete was on top of the pipes.
Mr. Quesada: Right, it was very close to where a lot of the structural stuff is for the bridge but, they were able to take care of it today, and we'll have somebody go and fix the sidewalk, but add the cement tomorrow.  Nothing else major going on right?
Mr. DelaVega: No, but the crew notified me that the annual bed near the bank was stolen, quite a few of them.
Mr. Quesada: The annuals? Mr. DelaVega: Yes.
Mr. Aponte:  Where at?
Mr. Delavega: Near the bank, the monument near the bank on 137th. Mr. Aponte: Ok.
Mr. Quesada: Across from Walmart . Mr. DelaVega: (inaudible comment)
(At this point several p eople were talking at one time, and no one conversation could be heard)

Mr. DelaVega: (inaudible comment) Anything else? Mr. Quesada:  No.
Mr. DelaVega: No more pictures, nothing we can work on, just to give you a little bit more renderings for the front entrance.
Mr. Aponte: I don't think so, I think what we have is pretty nice, but if we want to change anything up, I guess we can let you know.
Mr. Fernandez: (inaudible comment) Mr. Winkeljohn: Thank you guys.
Mr. Quesada:  Thank you, we appreciate it.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Do you want to have the other guests  report before we do our field report?
Mr. Aponte : Yes.
Mr. Quesada: So, Maverick.
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Mr. Mcintyre: Real quick before I give you guys an update on the stats, I just wanted to introduce you guys to Marcos Villanueva , he's the owner of the company. (Inaudible comment) Alright, so as you guys know every time I come, I like to bring you guys some stats and some updates.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Would you mind coming up a little bit closer, so we can get you on the audio.
Mr. Cooper : Before you go on, can you just give us some background , your years in business or some history?

(At this point Mr. Villanueva, owner of Maverick Security, gave a lengthy overview of his background, his company, polici es and procedures, recommendations on gate arm strikes, etc. which was inaudible on the record) (Afterwards there was a back and-forth discussion among the Board members, staff and M r. Villanueva) (Mr. M cint11re also gave his statistical update relating to the securitlj gates and the lobby track system. for the commtmitlj)

Mr. Quesada:  So, going back to what Kevin was saying, I do know what the post orders say, where we have this happy  medium, so I'm glad he brought it to you all, is there are ebbs and flows there, obviously the bulk of the traffic is gone by about 4:00 o'clock, for both, but now they have this after care program, and it comes in waves, so you might have a 5, 10 or 15 minute lull, where they can lower the arm, and then you just get slammed. So it gets tricky and that's where he just wants to come to you all and see what are your expectations, what do you guys want to see there so they can give clear direction to the guards about keeping the arms up, but it's kind of like a back and forth between 4:00 and 5:30 or 5:20ish, give or take, where nobody comes, and then 20 or 30 cars at once.
Ms. Cabrera: Ido know that the school has after care and after school clubs, and the latest club ends at 5:30 and at 5:30 there's a line of cars for pick up from those clubs. I mean after care is until 6:00 but, I know that these clubs, the bulk of them, are until 5:00 and I think the latest one is until 5:30, so at that point, at 5:20 or so you do have a line of cars at the school of parents waiting to pick up their kids from drama club.
Mr. Cooper: What time does school break, what time do they start lining up for school pick up?
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Ms. Cabrera: They have a dismissal at 2:30, at 3:00 and at 3:30, so roughly about 2:00 or 2:10 is when they start lining up for dismissal.
Mr. Cooper:  So, maybe adjust the pickup for 2:00 versus 1:00.
Mr. Mcintyre: No, because at 1:45 he goes and puts out the cones, and then he waits for that time to direct the traffic, so what I'm asking for is not really the start time because talked about that.
Mr. Cooper: We said 1:00.
Mr. Aponte: But these parents, and I'm sorry to interrupt, but these parents, I mean you have one of your kids in there, and do you have anything hanging in your car that the guard can see as you're driving by, they can see that it's just a school person, just lift the bar and let them go through.
Ms. Cabrera:  Yes, you have to have a card tag to be able to pick up your kids. Mr. Aponte:   Is that hung where they can see it?
Ms. Cabrera:  I mean some parents hang them, I don't hang mine, but then again, I also walk to get the kids.
Mr. Aponte: Well, the procession is always going to be there, it's just, do we keep the gates open for an extended amount of time for these clubs.
Ms. Cabrera: I think that it should be until the last dismissal and then after that, I mean, you could have like a few minutes where there's a rush of cars but, for the most part it's very sporadic. I mean some clubs end at 5:00, some clubs end at 5:30, after care is run through 6:00 o'clock, I think it's not really necessary to keep it going an extra 2 hours after dismissal.  I mean we've talked about this before where we feel like the gates are open for far too long.
Mr. Cruz: So, what are we going to suggest?
Ms. Cabrera: I don't know if you want to do like 4:00 , the last dismissal is 3:30, so half an hour or so between 3:30 and 4:00 where there's still, because there's a line of cars. I know for sure that by 4:00 o'clock, for sure, the traffic has died down already, and there are no more lines, the traffic has died down. Maybe at 5:00 o'clock when all the clubs are released, maybe then there's like more cars, then at 5:30 maybe there's like another 10 cars you know, but I wou ld say that by the end of the last dismissal, there are no more cars.
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Mr. Quesada: Let me ask you this, so let's say 4:00ish when the traffic dies down, could we treat it like how we treat it when traffic on 137th is backed up to the artery? So if you see that you're getting a few more cars picking up, 5 or 10 or however many, let that traffic go through, and then lower the arm.
Mr. Aponte: You can tell who the parents are because they're not going to go all the way to the roundabout and turn around, they're actually just doing the U-turn right at the guardhouse. I mean I come in at the time all the time and I see it, and I see it's not lifted, they turn, and I say, ok it's just a parent, I don't expect them to check in a parent because then, like you said, a line is going to be down all the way to Campbell.
Mr. Mcintyre: And here's what I'm saying, remember, we can just try this out for 2 weeks or so, and if we run into a problem we can come back, this is adjustable.
Mr. Aponte : Sounds good to me.
Mr. Mcintyre: Ijust want it for clarity because they have one rule, and we have another rule.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  In 4 weeks you won't have a problem at all.
Mr. Aponte: Right, and that's the key, I know we're talking about perception, but we know that guardhouse is just always complicated because of the school.
Mr. Winkeljohn: And we're obligated to open it up if the queue is beyond reasonable.
Mr. Mcintyre:  Ok.
Mr. Cooper: And that was one of the things I was going to bring up, and I only noticed it once, was that somebody from the school had one of those passes at guardhouse 1, showed the guard, and the guard opened up, and this was about a month ago, I don't know if the guard is still with us, or that was corrected.
Mr. Mcintyre: Right, but that's the standing order, the standing orders that we have so far, is that if they pull up with the pass and we know that they're just going to the school, then we just let them in so that way they don't back up the traffic there, but what I'm saying is we can apply that same thing in my opinion at gate 2, because when I was hanging out at gate 1 one morning, and I'm teaching the guard, I tell the people as they pull up, you know if you just had this hang tag right here you could minimize your time. So, I think it's the same thing at gate 2, if you tell them, hey I know you don't normally keep the hang tag, but in this situation, it would speed up the process.
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Ms. Cabrera: I mean you've got to have it to be able to pick up your kids, you have to have it, they won't release the kid to you unless you have that, so you have to have it anyway.
Mr. Mcintyre: No, they have it, but a lot of them will have it in the glovebox, so I'm just saying I educate them, and I think if we do that, let's just check it out, let's see what it looks like, and go from there.
Mr. Quesada:  Ok.
Mr. Aponte : Sounds good.
Mr. Mcintyre:  That's what Igot for you guys. Mr. Aponte: Ok, thank you.
Ms. Cabrera:  Thank you.
Mr. Quesada: And Kevin, do you think we need to get any extra tablets on our end, or are you comfortable with your backups, or we can get a couple ourselves?
Mr. Mcintyre: No, it's not.
Mr. Quesada: Ok, we can get like 2 more if we needed them.
Mr. Mcintyre: No, we're good, we have the backups, and I know obviously we're talking about eventually going to the facial recognition, so I don't think spending more at this point makes any sense, and our backups are fine.
Mr. Quesada:	Ok, I might get you a spare too just to be safe, ok, but just  keep doing what you're doing, thank you.
Mr. Mcintyre:  Ok.
Ms. Cabrera:  Thank you.
Mr. Winkeljohn:	And  I've got places we can use them if we don't need them anymore.
Mr." Quesada: Correct.


	Field Manager - Field Report

Mr. Aponte: Alright, so we are moving on to field manager, Ben.
Mr.  Quesada:	Do you want  to  ask  the  councilman  if  he  wants  to  make  any comments, or do you want to wait until audience comments?
Mr.Aponte:  Do you have anything to add for us?
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Mr. Roth: No, not really, but there are a couple of events coming up this weekend, we have an event we do once a month now, it's a community trash pickup, if you're interested in doing that, we'll go to each apartment complex at 9;00 a.m., this Saturday. (Inaudible comments) So, that's the events that are going on. It's interesting that usually there's a council meeting the day before this meeting, and we went to about 9:30 last night, and we really didn't cover that much, but we did have our first LPA meeting which is, basically we got rid of the planning and zoning board and now the council meets prior to the council meeting for land use type and zoning type situations , and I think we're able to speed up the process because the process was taking too long to get to us, so now they immediately get to us and there's no delay in the process. (Inaudible comment) That's all I have, thank you very much, but I'd be happy to answer anything you might have. (Inaudible comment) The county works so slow in order to get these things approved, but if you have any questions, I'm happy to answer them, if not, I have a conference call I need to be on.
Ms. Cabrera: Thank you for your time.
Mr. Quesada: Yes, thank you for your time. Mr. Roth: You're welcome.
Mr. Aponte:  Ok, so Ben it's your turn.
Mr. Quesada: Yes, so catching up, we kind of touched on that with BrightView. The tree trimming has already been pretty much done, we just have some palms that need to be cleaned up, that's all that's missing. All the hardwood pruning has been done, I think that's the most important thing before hurricane season, so you know, although they did a really good job with the ficus trees. Lakes, your annual fish stocking took place on April 8th, Mayra and Jesus were kind enough to show them around, I was detained on other business but, they took excellent photos, and they came out great. Moving on, we had a little bit of a graffiti incident, I explained to you about the bridge, we just did a big irrigation repair there, and the City of Homestead, I know one thing, I've actually been talking to the utilities electrical company, Homestead Electric, they went ahead and finally repaired the sidewalk on Campbell Drive, I know that took some time, they starting in January and they were able to finally get that sidewalk up to speed. As far as MasTec, there is still exposed wires there along Campbell Drive, we're in holding pattern but in the meantime BrightView was being proactive. We had just some lateral line breaks so that
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was about $300 worth of work , and I authorized that, and we'll seek reimbursement with MasTec. The thing I want to be careful with is to wait until they're completely done with that wiring, but it looks like there's still some trenching pending and then we'll pursue that if needed, so our irrigation system as of today is 100%. We had some minor vandalism along the bridge, somebody was nice enough to go and knock the light down all the way into the cement area, but we were able to recover it, but it was damaged , so we had a replacement on hand, and we took care of that. Going into the clubhouse, mulch was just replaced last week, the playground, same mulch it looks great, no more exposed roots. The pool company drained the pool and acid washed it, a few of you came by and took a look at it, I think it looks a lot better, we couldn't get everything out but, it looks like night and day Ithink overall. Going into the speakers, we had some exposed wires that were just buried, they created some little manholes for anybody that has to do any future work , and that was done yesterday , and we're still awaiting to pass inspection from the Health Department again, we're at the mercy of one contractor with the pool motor, they don't make them anymore. I did talk to them about possibly purchasing another one, so if something similar should happen again, we have a spare on hand. Keep in mind it's custom built, so I just want to get us going but, I'm going to see if we can work on that so maybe billing wise we can always take care of that toward the end of the fiscal year , and have that spare ready to go if we ever have the issue arise again so there's not a big downtime. There is a chance it could reopen, they connected the pump to the feeders so, it's just a matter of them making an adjustment on that.  So, one other thing I wanted to bring up real quick and then I'll conclude is, we have had a duck removal expert come out to the District on three occasions since the spring, and on those three occasions he's removed 26 ducks, the two areas that we're getting the most ducks is right across from the clubhouse here, at lake #8, and over by Kim's Corner, lake #4 I believe that is. So, we know who the people are who are feeding them. We've reached out to the association to try to crack down on them because in some cases you can even see them leaving food in their backyards, however, it all depends on how much you guys want to spend to take care of the problem. So, in the past you've given the management authorization to spend up to $1,000 a year on this, we're already at $960 with those three trips. I know the benches that are suffering the most is at lake #7, which is over by the memorial for Jose, our porter who passed, and Kim's Corner, the Kim's Corner bench I think is the worst.
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mean, we've had our porter, and we've had one of the janitors that helps us out with small projects throughout the year go and clean it, and within 24 to 48 hours it doesn't look like anybody touched it. So, I just wanted to bring that to your attention; I did some research on a pressure washing trailer that could be purchased and used, we could work out a storage location and what not. BrightView has also offered, for $28 per bench, to do some light pressure washing for us if we ok that, but again I just wanted to run it by you all because based on my own observations, you touch the bench, and within 24 to 48 hours, how often do you want to see these benches cleaned, how much are you willing to spend, who do you want to do it, so I wanted to give you this option, it gives us a little bit more control over the situation. We'd have to contract somebody to help us with that but, it's for you guys to just decide, so I wanted to present to you that information and how much more are you willing to spend to maintain those two benches.
Mr. Valladares: Would the golf cart be able to pull this, or we have to get another vehicle?
Mr. Quesada: The golf cart wouldn't handle it because it's electric and when you have 4 to 6 people in there already, you're stressing it, so Iwouldn't recommend it.
Mr. Valladares: Are we talking about approximately $5,300 for the trailer, and now we have to figure out to what we're going to hook it up to and pull it.
Ms. Cabrera: I mean, we would have to figure out, who would be doing the work, and if that person would be able to pull that trailer.
Mr. Quesada: I mean this is just something that I wanted to throw out there, I have talked to Curtis about it a few times.
Mr. Aponte : What I recommend we do is, I mean, we have a problem, and it's only one problem right, the ducks. So, yes, we did, as a District, expand the budget on that removal and then see how that works first before we spend anything else because obviously if we're going to clean them, and I've seen them myself, I walk every day, and this one bench across from here, I've seen it clean, and the very next day it looks like nothing has every happened, they just congregate. So, the key is, let's see if we can expand the budget on the duck removal and maybe pick them up a little bit more often, and see what happens, and in between that we can actually, I mean for $28 a bench that's pretty cheap, it's just how clean do we want them.
Mr. Valladares:  What do you think, $28 per duck?
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Mr. Quesada: No, we're paying about $35 per duck, which is actually on the cheap side because other companies charge about $50.
Ms. Cabrera: I mean I think that the people that are feeding the ducks are the same people all the time.
Mr. Aponte: Yes.
Mr. Quesada: That's the frustration because we kind of targeted them.
Ms. Cabrera: So, how heavy are we going with these people, I mean how much are we enforcing with them, are we doing it with the sub-associations, do we know where they live?
Mr. Quesada: I know where at least two of them live, yes.
Ms. Cabrera: Imean I know that one of them is in Portofino Point, and it's an older gentleman.
Mr. Quesada: Yes, one in Portofino Oaks, and one in Waterstone Estates, so that's three.
Ms. Cabrera: Right, so can the sub-association do something to enforce, I mean I don't know, it's not really in the By Laws either but, maybe if we can work with the association to kind of enforce something.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  We can ask.
Mr. Cabrera:  I mean really like a penalty for feeding them.
Mr. Cruz: In Marbella Cove we have in our bylaws that it's considered a nuisance, because the nuisance is that they leave food out.
Ms. Cabrera: Do we have signs at the lake? Mr. Aponte : Yes.
Ms. Cabrera:  We do, that says no feeding . Mr. Aponte:  Yes.
Mr. Valladares: Our side does.
(At this point several peo ple were talking at one time, and no one conversation could be heard)

Mr. Winkeljohn: With some people it's, they care more about the ducks than rules, and they're just going to never stop, so that's reality in any community.
Mr. Valladares:  Fine them, hit them in the pocket.
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Mr. Winkeljohn: You can try, some of them would gladly fight you over it.
Ms. Cabrera: I mean I'm just saying, maybe if the sub-associati on really enforces it, maybe reach into their pocket, and say you have to pay a penalty or a fine if you keep feeding the ducks.
Mr. Winkeljohn: I agree. Mr. Aponte : Yes.
Ms. Cabrera: Because we can keep getting rid of them but, they're going to continue.
Mr. Winkeljohn: You'll also have to have a management program. Mr. Aponte : Right.
Mr. Quesada: From what I hear, one of them, has quite a bit of fines stacked up already and I don't know where that is but, Ijust  know that.
Mr. Cooper: So, this has been a problem we've had for years since I've been on the Board. I know Valley Crest, at the time, and now BrightView, said that they would go ahead, and at one point a year ago or two years ago, before COVID, Vince was going to go ahead and periodically, like once a month, or once every couple of months, take care of pressure washing benches at night.
Mr. Quesada: Do you guys want to do something like that?
Mr. Cooper: I'm just saying, that's never happened, so we'd be kidding ourselves to think that would work , so that if we had the ducks, to be able to remove them, to help with this problem and obviously that hasn't solved the issue in regards to cleaning the benches, it's sad that we have people in this beautiful community that are walking, playing with their kids, and they can't even sit on the benches because it's duck infested. So, my original suggestion was we have multiple different CDDs that are down here, to have them kind of join in the cost of this and utilize this, but to my knowledge I thought BrightView is our concierge level of care, so they have gators and they should be able to tow that, and then utilize the person that we have that is onsite for those types of projects to be able to pressure wash, isn't that the same person that they would be to us?
Mr. Winkeljohn:  In theory, yes.
Mr. Cooper: So, I don't know why they would, like I could see if it was their equipment, that they'd  be charging us for  because they're obviously  needing to be
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compensated for the pressure washing, but if we're paying them to do the basic stuff in the community, that one porter, that they can't every couple of weeks utilize that person.
Mr. Quesada: That's what we've been doing, just so you know, the porter  has been targeting those specific benches, it's just one day or two days  later it looks like he never touched it. Most recently they had done a pressure wash in the last month, they've done at least one pressure wash, and on at least two occasions with  a bucket and a brush because the pressure washer wasn't  available  on  those  occasions.  So,  we're trying to tackle it from different angles, that's why I came to you guys, how much do you want to spend, and it seems that no matter the frequency , the ducks are the constant, and I agree with your thinking we're removing some, but I'm just  presenting options. So, whatever it is that you think is going to work best to tackle the issue, we can do.
Mr. Aponte: Imean, think about it, 26 ducks in 4 months that's nothing, I mean we have hundreds and hundreds of ducks.
Ms. Cabrera:  Yes, we have like 500 of them. Mr. Aponte:   Right.
Ms. Cabrera: Do we have a management plan, like how often do we do it, or is it just when we randomly call?
Mr. Quesada: Because we do such frequent drives, you guys do get that kind of field supervision, and we're just keeping tabs and trying to be strategic about it, you know when we see they're coming to the clubhouse, that's a good time to strike this area right here, or when they're attacking the walkway or the benches are getting worse , we're targeting that, and we're trying to be fair to everybody because you guys represent the entire community. So, tackle this half first, let's go to the other side and focus our attention on that, so I think we've been good about it, it's just I want to make sure you're comfortable that the expenses are going to start to mount up.
Mr. Aponte : Can you reach out to the management companies and see if they have some type of duck removal, a process in place, and if not maybe share that cost, because I know some of these HOAs are paying a whole lot more than that.
Mr. Cruz: We pay $50 a duck, so $35 is good.
Mr. Aponte: Right, so that's what I'm saying, so maybe if we use that, and maybe we can do a joint effort.
Mr. Quesada: Timing wise we can do it at the same time.
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Mr. Cruz: Yes, because when you do it spotty, it does come back. Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right, you're still behind.
Mr. Quesada:  Let us know when you guys are ready, I mean you want to pay
$1,000 or more?
Ms. Cabrera: Tomorrow . Mr. Quesada: Ok.
Mr. Aponte: Right, I don't mind authorizing another  $1,000 just  to start dealing with some of the issues and then hopefully we can get other communities involved and then we can actually do a pretty decent sweep here.
Mr. Quesada:  Ok, sounds good. I'll get with them too, to see if we have time.
Mr. Valladares: Let me ask you a question, the ducks that have been removed the last two or three times, are we talking about just one section of Waterstone or are we talking about the entire community?
Mr. Quesada: So, we're jumping, and again, to be fair to the contractor, he has to come more than once because when he comes he can only fit so many in cages and in his vehicle, so that's why I'm saying you see so many trips in such a short interval, but we did a burst, here at lake #8, we did a burst in lake #7 which is right there in the middle between both phases, and  then we did Kim's Corner which is lake #4, which is exclusively on the opposite end, so again, we're trying to be fair.
Mr. Valladares:  Right, but what I'm looking for is a balance of both sides.
Mr. Winkeljohn : Right, and we just showed that we're doing it wrong , we are spotted , we need to do a bigger big taking, like in a 3-week window, cut the number way down, coordinate it, and then revisit it in a month or two, that's the only way you're ever going to get ahead. It's an exponential growth factor with ducks unfortunately, they can have multiple hatchings a season.
Mr. Cruz: Just something aside from that, but can you take away the eggs?
Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes, egg management is part of the program, so if you're not going out and collecting the clutches of eggs, as soon as they're hatched, you're never going to catch up. So that's the other part of a good program, is you need the porter or somebody that we can afford to be on that foot program, and then you hit it with a large removal program and you'll keep them managed a little better, but we'll work on it for you, let us tune it up.
26

Mr. Aponte:  Sounds good.
Mr. Quesada:  And that concludes the field report.


	Manager

Mr. Aponte:  Ok, and there's probably nothing under manager but go-ahead Paul.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Well, you asked for !Pads, now you got !Pads, and now we have to talk about them . Alright, so they' re all obviously set up identical, there's a new email address called southdadeventure@lcloud .com that is tied to each of these. When you open the email anything sent to the Board that is a display or a reference document will go to that email, you open it, you can save it as a file. Once it's a file or opened, you have two choices, the standard Adobe, but I bought for you a $50 license for the expert one which will, when we get the styluses you'll be able to write notes and stuff like that. So, it's an evolutionary process. I'd like to take them back at this time and not issue them out of the office, because we might add another piece of software to it, put the website on there, hyperlink, we have things we can do to make it more useful to you, send us ideas that you thought of. We need cases so you can see them, so that they're sitting up.
Mr. Quesada: And we were just waiting for them to arrive, which they just did, so that we can make sure that we get the right accessories.
Mr. Winkeljohn : Right, because the long lead time on the device was the problem, so keep styluses and stands, and do you think you'll leave them with us, or do you want to take them home, what do you think?
Mr. Cruz: I would leave them.
Mr. Winkeljohn : Alright, so that's fine , we'll need to get a charger, they make them with a slot and you just drop them, so that they have plenty of good charges, because it's an email delivery and you look at things, you can search the web, you can do all of that, but any Apps, things you think are useful, just let me know.
Ms. Cabrera: So, if we write on the documents, will they be saved, like will this always be mine, this one will be mine?
Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes, so we'll label them for next time, since I'm assuming you didn't do that today, because I thought of that, it was kind of one of those things, make them totally individual or totally identical, and so the solution is we'll just mark the back of them, and you'll get the same one every time to put any files on it you want.  You could
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email to it, things you want to talk about or see, everybody will get it, and they're good that way. So, if you want to add, like for the meetings, if you want to have just your email on it, you can do that at the meeting, just add that as an email option, a Gmail one or something like that, it's no big deal, and most of us know how to do it, if you don't, we'll figure it out.  Any questions?
Mr. Aponte: No.
Mr. Winkeljohn: And thanks Jesus, he may have gone home, but he was the lead on getting these for you.  That's all I have, so we'll shoot for kind of a light agenda next month, we'll have an open workshop sort of session, and we'll have a copy of the rules on your !Pads, and you can go from there.
Mr. Valladares:   Sounds good.


SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Financial Reports
	Approval of Check Run Summary
	Balance Sheet and Income Statement

Mr. Aponte :  Moving on to item No. 6, financial reports, approval of the check run summary, and balance sheet and income statement, I need a motion please.


On MOTION by Mr. Valladares seconded by Mr. Cooper with all in favor, the Check Run Summary and Balance Sheet, and Income Statement were approved.
file_3.bin



SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Supervisors	Requests
Audience Comments
 and
Mr. Aponte: Item No. 7 supervisors requests and audience comments, so we'll start with Councilwoman Avila.
Ms. Avila: Sorry for my tardiness. Today is take your child to work day, so I brought my assistant with me. I just wanted to say thank you for showing up at the Waterstone townhall meeting, and I was very impressed to see  also the mayor and the rest of the council there, and a great show of support, and being involved, responses are coming back everybody is doing a great job, so thank you for copying the emails. The issue with some of the concrete I believe has been resolved, right?
Mr. Quesada : Yes, thank you.
Ms. Avila:  Are there any open or pending work orders?
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Mr. Quesada: No, as far as the city goes, no, we're just at the MasTec project and I think that's with the light, right?
Ms. Avila: Right, the light is up and operational and out of the way, they are still going to be finishing some other items to complete the overall project. I did open up a request for study at the intersection where the was a T-bone accident out of Waterstone , so they had closed that request last year, saying no findings, saying actually that it was Waterstone's responsibility, so we're fighting that, and I think it's coming down to who owns the road, so we're fighting on that again. Coming up in terms of events, this Saturday is the keep Homestead beautiful initiative, it's a cleaning day, a cleaning effort, you can meet at the Homestead Police Department at 9:00 a.m., and I do have a flyer out for that. I did get your text message, thank you for asking that question about what's happening with the bulk and recycle, that's an ongoing issue, it's multiple counties that are having the same issue. Our trucks are on back order, the trucks we have are breaking, what we're try ing to do is keep the communication flowing so you can sign up for alerts, so you can get alerts so you're at least aware of what's going on and when there's a change in the schedule. I did share the option to add additional recycling cans, if you wanted to get another can, you can, and coming up in the month of May, is Military Spouse Appreciation Day, and I am hosting a brunch in Waterstone and Malibu Bay, so we'll be handing that flyer to everyone , and that will be hosted by Starbucks on May 6th. So, that's it, are there any questions for me specifically, or any homework I can take back?
Ms. Cabrera: No, thank you.
Mr. Valladares : One thing that I need to ask, Commissioner Avila or the District manager, if they can help with, we have a transformer right north of the pedestrian gate of Portofino Bay, and the surface of that transformer is rusted, it has pieces missing, and I was told today that there is a strong odor, possibly starting to leak oil, and we need to have somebody from FPL look at that because what keeps that from overheating is the oil.
Ms. Avila : Well, send me pictures, and we have contacts in our legal department that work very well with FPL, so I'll make that an issue.
Mr. Winkeljohn: We have a former resident that was the head of maintenance for FPL that lived here, and we still have that contact so we'll reach out.
Mr. Quesada: Just so you know, I have an update, as of February we started with this transformer request in October and now it's February, and again to be fair, the contact
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we had here is not responsible for switch cabinets, but the last update I got as of February 7th is, here's the response from the engineer. Switch cabinets right now are hard to come by, but they're going to stay on top of it, they will reach out to us when they know, but feel free to update any time, so we'll follow up again, but since October we've been waiting .
Ms. Avila: Well, send me the pictures, and the specific location on that, and if you have any, if you can find information on the actual case itself, that would be helpful, but I know when we did ride along, we saw one transformer that was the City of Homestead, I think that same week. So, we'll be responsive whether it's getting the information to the right person, and then I'll follow up.
Mr. Quesada: And going back to the MasTec, I know it's not your project but, there is an exposed wire still, where there's a turn, so I don't know where we are and the status of that project, but my concern is we don't want to touch anything, there's wires and electric.
Ms. Avila: Can you send me that particular picture as well?
Mr. Quesada: Yes, and I'm waiting to see if they're going to do any more trenching because obviously , they're not going to leave it like that.
Ms. Avila : (inaudible comment)
Mr. Quesada: Ok, we'll take care of that. Ms. Avila: Ok perfect. That's all Ihad.
Mr. Aponte: Anyone else, does anyone in the audience have any comments, or anything to bring up or say?
Mr. Saucer: Yes, before Igo Ijust wanted to mention for Victor's concern about the transformer , in Pebblebrook, they didn't have leaking oil or anything but we had a terrible working transformer, and I reached out to FPL, the associate engineer, Jay, and I'm not sure if that's the same person that you're in touch with, but he was really responsive and for $100 per, they came in and repainted all of our transformers in Pebblebrook, so it might be something that you want to consider just for beautification, we're happy with the result, and I can pass along that contact information if you'd like.
Mr. Quesada: Sure, and also, I was thinking what would be nice too, because it's so rusted that it needs to get replaced, so that's partly where I think that they may be the parts that they're looking for but, we'll follow up, thank you.
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Mr. Saucer: Sure, and then Erica had touched on too, I just wanted to also thank you all for having your families at the townhall meeting, we couldn't have asked for a better turnout really, and I know that your presences help to send a message to the county and also to the Waterstone residents most importantly that we're here and we're working on it, and we care. So, if you're interested, I could provide everyone with an update on where things are at with that. So, the basic consensus coming out of the townhall meeting was that perhaps the market value isn't what it might seem on paper, simply because of the location and the zoning, the agriculture, and things of that nature. So, we're working with the commissioner's office, it's a little bit difficult because the county, just in the last few months, issued this order that changed drastically how the county was supposed to go about disposing of property, and my understanding is that the change in the order was because of situations where commissioners where sort of handing out property. So, what we're asking for is something similar but, we have no reason and so we're kind of just trying to feel that out and see if they can come up with a solution for us. We also have brought on very recently, a land use and zoning attorney that's going to kind of help us to navigate some of the next steps to make sure that our interests are being accounted for and we're getting to the point now where we need someone who understands all the information behind it, so that's the update on the land, but we're still working on it. The other thing that Iwanted to mention is with respect to the drainage easement agreement. I know it was a topic of conversation last month, I intended to be here, I actually had a car accident on the way here, so I wasn't able to make it for the beginning of the meeting, but I have thoughts on the gates are going. I've had a rental for the last month, and I've been going through the visitor's gate every day and it is a lot better, and I heard the conversation earlier before. So, it just so happens really that we got this agreement from Scott at around the same time that everything went sideways with this land, and we were being told that the county has these easement rights to the land, and so among the Board the easement all of sudden became, but you know where I'm going with this, the word easement all of sudden became a big scary word, and so I feel like I've done everything that I can, and shared with them the letter that Scott wrote, it was a very good letter, it explained everything very well. Our Board is a contemplating Board, and I mean that in a good way, but I guess they have concerns, and so I kind of proposed, and maybe I shot myself in the foot with this, but I said well, why don't we take it to the attorney , let's see she what she
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thinks and I was confident that we were going to get a positive opinion coming out of that, and I forwarded that opinion to Scott and Ben and basically the concerns of the attorney were that the easement agreement itself didn't make mention or reference to what the intent of the overall drainage project is, and so her recommendation would either be to change the easement agreement, which I know that's come up before on other Boards, or perhaps an alternative would be to separately have something very similar to Scott's letter, be written up, sort of like something that we all sign on to, almost like a memorandum of understanding.
Mr. Winkeljohn: A method of operation.
Mr. Saucer: That this is what the District is going to do, and this is  what Pebblebrook or enter a name here, like what we're doing as well by granting the easement, and then if that was to exist, she said that agreement should be referenced in  the easement document that gets recorded. So, like I said, I'm just one person, and personally I'm fully on board with this, I just know what you guys are doing, but I have to be realistic, and reality is that I don't have enough support on my Board right now to move forward, and so Ijust wanted to be frank with you all and kind of report back what some of the concerns are. I know that there's other agreements signed, most among the Waterstone II communities, and Iimagine you guys are interested in trying to roll it out on a broad basis.
Mr. Winkeljohn:   Not really.
Mr. Aponte:  I mean it costs us money.
Mr. Winkeljohn: We're just trying to do you a favor.
Mr. Saucer: And I understand, so I'm here to fill you guys in on that and I don't know what the appetite might be to sort of adopt Scott's letter into some sort of a MOU to more clearly articulate what the intent is.
Mr. Winkeljohn: And that makes sense, Scott is there any hardship with that?
Mr. Cochran: Well, the main  thing is, so the reason that we have to have an easement or some  type of property interest in the drainage  facilities  that  we're  talking about is because the District can't spend public money, District funds, on private facilities, so we have to, we can only pay money towards public facilities, facilities that we own, facilities that we have easement rights  with respect to, and so we can't substitute the easement with just an agreement because that still doesn't give us, that's not a legally effective  instrument  that  gives  us  a  property  interest.    I think  the  other  issue  is this,
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because one of the concerns and the attorney for the association, I think has raised in respect to other ones is that it's perpetual, and they say well what if we decide to terminate it, and again, I think the intent to make it perpetual is because if the association is terminated whenever they want, then it's kind of a illusory property because, they can say ok here's the easement, we pay to maintain it, and then as soon as we pay, give them their money, they say, oh we're terminating the easement, and so it's not really a District interest if that's the case. Also, I think the other reason for the easement is it permits the District, it doesn't require the District to do this, so in a good year, they can say, you know what you did it last time District, but we don't like the way you did it, and we'd rather just take it back, and that's fine, with the easement they can do that, they still own the property, it allows the District to do the maintenance, it doesn't require the District to do but, I think, and I don't know because I haven't talk to Mike about it, but that might have been the intent at the time as to why the maintenance piece of it was not specifically talked about in the easement itself, it's still allowed to have flexibility so that if the association decides they'd rather take it back over, if the easement says that we have to do it, then we have to do it, and it becomes more complicated for the association to take it back. So, legally, yes, it's certainly possible, we can provide from a legal standpoint, we can include language about maintaining the drainage facilities, we can reference an attachment that has something that deals with that, or a separate agreement, that's fine, but we haven't done that with the other associations but, I don't know if they've requested it, so it's kind of up to the Board.
Mr. Winkeljohn : Maybe we can do an addendum , fit all that in and just make sure they're all uniform and have all of them adopt an addendum , a one-page addendum or however long it is but, is that kind of what you think?
Mr. Saucer:  Yes.
Mr. Winkeljohn: And just have everybody that's in the program adopt it, and sign it, because I want them all uniformed, I don't want special, we can't have a unique relationship with just one, they all have to be identical.
Mr. Cochran: Right, and from a legal standpoint, we can do that, it's just going to cost if we're doing it.
Mr. Winkeljohn: And I think it's for the good of the entire community, it's the same pocket at that point.
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Mr. Cochran: I'm just saying that if we're preparing an addendum , obviously it's going to be a template, and it's going to be used the same way.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, and that would be my recommendation  is to follow that path, do a new addendum to the existing identical contracts, with the names obviously different , if they want to execute that and the addendum , then they're good, and then we'll go to the others and ask them, look we want everybody to have the same exact language, sign this, does that make sense to you?
Mr. Cochran:   It makes sense, but I still need to know what the content of it would
be.
 

Mr. Winkeljohn: I don't know either, I don't know what they want.
Mr. Saucer:	She, the attorney, in her opinion she just said, or she basically said,
there's  no language  describing the  maintenance  responsibilities  or the specs  for  the maintenance.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, and I think we know them now, so I'm comfortable, we've adopted them, where  it's budgeted.
Mr. Quesada: Just to make it real clear, just so everyone knows and for the record, we have good enough relationships with all the contractors that have done work for us where you guys basically , and most companies charge, you get a free inspection every year, it doesn't mean it's going to be clean every year.
Mr. Winkeljohn : But we can draft it.
Mr. Quesada: So, you'll get inspected every year, and then based on need the Board adopts it.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right.
Mr. Cochran:  Ijust need to know what the content is.
Mr. Winkeljohn:   We can draft it, Ben and I can give you a straw description of what is a reasonable maintenance program that the Board would agree with, and we budget for, and it's not going to go away.
Mr. Cochran: Ok, and as long as the substance of that you provide it, we can tweak it as necessary and do that, so yes, I guess that's fine.
Mr. Cooper: And I know you can't give me an exact figure, but are we looking at couple thousand, or $15,000, you all did addendums.
Mr. Winkeljohn: He's asking what's the order of magnitude.
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Mr. Cooper: I mean we've been doing this for years and we've never had any community ask for any type of addendum.
Mr. Winkeljohn: We had a few get grumpy but, they still wanted to be part of it.
Mr. Cooper: But I mean as far as our care of all the facilities, of what we've maintained, has never had any issues with the level of care we've giving.
Mr. Quesada: Correct.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Correct, so I'm very confident we can perform that.
Mr. Cochran: And I can't give an exact amount, but I can say it probably will be to develop the initial document. It will take probably a couple of hours between back and forth, and revising and stuff like that, and then to do it for however many associations, I don't know the exact number of associations that have them, because I know we sent them to all of them, and I know a certain number of them did them, so it would just be that additional time for one of those, which would probably be, depending on how much clean up is necessary for each. The other thing is though , all of these get recorded in the public records, so it's not just the preparation of it, it's then sending it off to get recorded, it's getting the original back, it's transmitting the recorded one back to management. So, it's not an insignificant amount, it's our rates billed hourly, that's what it will be, but I'm just saying it sounds like a simple thing but in reality, it's not an insignificant amount of time.
Mr. Winkeljohn: It would be over $2,000 and under $10,000 would be how I would translate that.
Mr. Cochran: Right, I would agree, that sounds about right. I just want to give a realistic account.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, and just to the Board, this is sort of, you're the only entity that serves all the communities here and obviously you're the entity responsible for the drainage being successful , and the risk to this community of having a community not understand what it takes to clean the drains, not having an engineer on staff that really guides you, we have that expertise, and so that's what got us into this business is, we should centralize it so it's uniform and the success of drainage is uniformed results. So, that's your global responsibility that you've chosen, and if this gets us to gather in a few well-meaning Boards, I think it's to your advantage, and a worthy cost.
Mr. Aponte: Sounds good.
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Mr. Cochran: So, I think we have direction for that, and so that's probably what we can do is have something ready for the next meeting to be approved.
Mr. Winkeljohn: And that was Logan Saucer giving his description.
Mr. Saucer: Yes, that was my characterization of the email that I forwarded and also the phone conversation I had with the attorney .
Mr. Winkeljohn: No objections from the Board to that? Mr. Aponte:  No.
Mr. Cooper: I appreciate what we're trying to do, it's just hard for me when we're looking at not being able to spend $5,000 to utilize something else that will reduce to make a buck, so I'm just saying we didn't decide to do that to make a viable impact in the community .
Mr. Winkeljohn:  But that's a different discussion
Mr. Cooper: I understand that, I'm saying that here now we're using this money on something that really, it's just a matter of an easement, and I get that there's concern with both parties, but we have to do things our way and we can't do anything different or anything like that, so I understand the whole thing.
Mr. Winkeljohn: What other purpose do we have, that's our main job, aesthetics are one thing, drainage is your core responsibility, so they are different, but I understand, but that's up to the Board, if you guys want to go back and buy a pressure cleaner, and I just don't want the record to look at them as equivalents because they're not.
Mr. Aponte:  Anything else?
A resident: So, if you're talking about the transformers being rusted out, and the one that faces the guardhouse is all rusted as well, but the signs that point to the other communities, and the arrows, some of the communities you can't even see them anymore because they're all faded out.
Mr. Quesada:  It's on our project list.
A resident: Ok, and you spoke about the graffiti on the sidewalks, by Portofino Estates, there's graffiti in the concrete itself, so when somebody literally poured the concrete, kids went around and put some vulgar words in it, so my wife has been complaining about that for years.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Is it a sidewalk we repaired?
A resident: I don't know, but it's by Portofino Estates.
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Mr. Quesada: Well, we'll get with you and just point it out, and if it's District related, we'll take care of it.
A resident: Ok.
Mr. Aponte: Anyone else? Supervisors, Victor do you have anything?
Mr. Valladares: No, I think everyone had come and made their comments and were part of this meeting, everybody has given their perspective and it's good that we have participation from the Master Board, Waterstone Grand and certainly from the city council.
Ms. Cabrera: And thank you for getting our crosswalk sign up. Ms. Avila: You're welcome.
Mr. Aponte: Curtis, do you have anything?
Mr. Cooper: So, where are we at with regards to the clubhouse with the land that they were looking doing changes to be able to change it in the county, were we moving forward something with that, or did we put that on pause?
Mr. Winkeljohn: There was no direction to do any more, we certainly explored it, we talked about it, and we've had other people say yes, you could unify them maybe, but that really wasn't directed to hire somebody to do that.
Mr. Cochran: My recollection was it would be necessary to hire an attorney that specializes in planning and zoning and that kind of work, so it's not something we can handle, and I reached out to Gerry Knight who is one of the attorneys in our office and he said it's not something that we could handle in house, we'd have to go out, and so I think you discussed that, and the discussion at that point was for the amount of work that it wasn't the right time, that's my recollection.
Mr. Cooper:  Ok.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  It's up to the Board to take it further.
Mr. Cooper: Then I guess knowing that I don't think anybody wants to do it, right?
Mr. Aponte: Well, I was asking if anybody had any comment on that, do you want to do the research for possibly expansion, or do you want to wait, how does the Board feel?
Ms. Cabrera: Well, I mean I think that it's important that we've explored it, I just don't know that if right now.
Mr. Winkeljohn: You've explored it to the point where you either, it was basically like a $20,000 check to write it or more, to get that attorney to pull the trigger.
Mr. Aponte:  Right.
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Ms. Cabrera: And it's been discussed, I don't know if we can pull the trigger on it and move forward and pay the $20,000 or whatever it is at this point.
Mr. Winkeljohn: That's where you guys get stuck every time, is the risk worth the investment because it is a risk of getting nothing .
Ms. Cabrera : Right.
Mr. Cooper: I just thought we were still exploring something that wasn't that expensive on that, so I guess Iwas just clarifying that.
Mr. Quesada : The unification of the titles or whatever  it was. Mr. Cochran: Well, the unity of title is not an option.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Because it's not residential property .
Mr. Cochran:  Yes, so it's something with the zoning that has to be changed . Mr. Winkeljohn: Then you're back to the beginning of the zoning change.
Mr. Cochran:   Right. (Inaudible comment)
Mr. Aponte: So, if we were to talk to the attorney, Iguess it would get us just a little better insight as to what our options would be and maybe give us costs.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  There would be no harm in that.
Mr. Aponte : Right, Idon't see a reason why we wouldn't want to explore that.
Mr. Winkeljohn: So, if Scott doesn't mind send me a reference contact, we're happy to ask them for a list of services.
Mr. Cochran:  Sure.
Mr. Winkeljohn : A cost for those services, I had one or two zoning groups that I'm familiar with that I think could do it.
Mr. Cochran: Yes, so I'll do that, I'll provide Paul with some references . Mr. Aponte : Ok.
Mr. Cooper: Then the other thing was Mayra or Ben, if you guys have an opportunity, we have a damaged flashing light on the school side in the median, and it's been damaged for a while, so I don't know if that's something that you could look into.
Mr. Quesada: Councilwoman Avila had one repaired recently, and if I could point out another one to you, do you think you could maybe reach out to somebody and see about that?
Ms. Avila: Yes, that's fine.
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Mr. Quesada: And so, they fixed the one exiting towards Campbell and there's one I believe at the entrance side or in the middle?
Mr. Cooper:  It's in the middle.
Mr. Quesada:  Ok so in the middle, so there's 3 that I know of, you have one on the exit at the corner , one in the center median, and on the entrance side.
Ms. Avila: And they all look the same right? Mr. Quesada: Yes.
Ms. Avila: Ok.
Mr. Cooper: That's all I have.
Mr. Aponte : Ok.  Mike, do you have anything? Mr. Cruz:  No.
Mr. Aponte : I have nothing.

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Adjournment
Mr. Aponte : So, item No. 8, adjournment, we just need a motion please.


On MOTION by Mr. Valladares seconded by Mr. Aponte with all in favor, the Meeting was adjourned .
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